RESOLUTION ROCK COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

County Board Staff Committee INITIATED BY

County Board Staff Committee SUBMITTED BY



Annette Mikula, HR Director DRAFTED BY

December 10, 2019 DATE DRAFTED

TO RATIFY THE 2020 LABOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN ROCK COUNTY AND

	THE CORRECTIONAL OFFICERS IN THE SHERIFF'S OFFICE
1 2	WHEREAS, the County is subject to 111.70 of the Wisconsin Statutes; and
3 4 5	WHEREAS, the Correctional Officers Association representatives and the County have discussed a successor contract for the bargaining unit; and
6 7 8	WHEREAS, the parties arrived at a tentative agreement on wages, hours and conditions of employment; and
9	WHEREAS, the proposed wage settlement represents an overall total package increase of 3.00%; and
11 12	WHEREAS, the membership of the Association has ratified the agreement; and,
	WHEREAS, a summary of the contractual agreement is attached.
15	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Rock County Board of Supervisors assembled this
	Respectfully Submitted,
	JRussell Podzilni, Chair Mary Mawhinney, Vice Chair
<	Richard Bostwick Henry Brill

Louis Peer

Alan Sweeney

Betty JøBusse

Bob Yeoman

TO RATIFY THE 2020 LABOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN ROCK COUNTY AND THE CORRECTIONAL OFFICER'S ASSOCIATION Page 2

FISCAL NOTE:

2020

BaseAdditionalOverallCompensationCompensation% Inc.

\$3,903,281 \$117,112 3.00%

Sherry Oja //
Finance Director

LEGAL NOTE:

The County Board is authorized to take this action pursuant to secs. 59.01 and 111.70, Wis. Stats.

Richard Greenlee Corporation Counsel

ADMINISTRATIVE NOTE:

Recommended.

Josh Smith

County Administrator

Executive Summary

Rock County has reached previous settlements with one other law enforcement bargaining units for a
3% total package increase. This settlement is consistent with another law enforcement groups, and
aligns with the 3% across the board increase proposed to the non-represented Rock County employees.
This is within the parameters provided by the Rock County Board of Supervisors.

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN

&

ROCK COUNTY CORRECTIONAL OFFICERS' ASSOCIATION

2020-2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	1
ARTICLE II	RECOGNITION & BARGAINING UNIT	1
ARTICLE III	ASSOCIATION SECURITY	1
ARTICLE IV	PROBATION AND TRIAL PERIOD	3
ARTICLE V	SENIORITY	4
ARTICLE VI	LAYOFF, REHIRE	4
ARTICLE VII	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	4
ARTICLE VIII	HOLIDAYS	6
ARTICLE IX	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	6
ARTICLE X	VACATIONS	7
ARTICLE XI	SICK LEAVE	8
ARTICLE XII	BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	9
ARTICLE XIII	BENEFITS IN LIEU OF WAGES	10
ARTICLE XIV	HOURS OF WORK, WAGES, CLASSIFICATION AND PAYDAY	11
ARTICLE XV	JURY DUTY, VOTING	13
ARTICLE XVI	NO STRIKE, NO LOCKOUT	13
ARTICLE XVII	DISCHARGE, SUSPENSION	14
ARTICLE XVIII	ALTERATION, LIMITATION, DURATION	
ARTICLE XIX	DEFINITIONS	15
ARTICLE XX	PARAGRAPH HEADINGS	15
ARTICLE XXI	APPENDIX	16
	APPENDIX A – 2020 WAGE SCHEDULE	17
	APPENDIX B – SCHEDULE OF HEALTH BENEFITS	18
	APPENDIX C – SCHEDULE OF DENTAL BENEFITS	19

AGREEMENT

This Agreement made and entered into this	day of _		•	between Ro	-
Wisconsin hereinafter referred to as the County	and the Rock	County Correctional	Officers .	Association,	hereinafter
referred to as the Association.					•

ARTICLE I - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The management of the Sheriff's Office and the direction of the working force is vested exclusively in the Sheriff, including, but not limited to the right to hire or appoint, suspend, demote, discipline or discharge for cause (all pursuant to the provisions of Wis. Stats. 59.26) for the Sheriff's Office to transfer or layoff for economic or other legitimate reasons, to determine the type, kind and quality of service to be rendered to the citizenry, to determine the location, operation and type of any physical structures or facilities of any division or shift within a division, to plan and schedule service, work shifts and training programs, to establish reasonable work rules, to determine what constitutes good and efficient County service and all other functions of management and direction not expressly limited by the terms of this Agreement. The Association expressly recognizes the prerogative of the County and the Sheriff to operate and manage its affairs in all respects in accordance with its responsibilities.

ARTICLE II - RECOGNITION AND BARGAINING UNIT

The Employer hereby recognizes the Rock County Correctional Officer's Association, referred to herein as the Association affiliated with the Wisconsin Professional Police Association, as the exclusive collective bargaining representative on matters pertaining to wages, hours and other conditions of employment.

ARTICLE III ASSOCIATION SECURITY

The Association within thirty days of the election agrees to notify the Human Resource Director in writing of names of the Association officers who have been selected to represent employees in the Association. One officer or steward shall be permitted to investigate and process a grievance during working hours, without loss of pay. Two officers or stewards shall be permitted to meet with County Administration during working hours without loss of pay to process class action grievances.

Authorized officers conducting any of the above specified activity away from their assigned worksite shall request a release from their appropriate supervisor at least twenty-four hours in advance of such activity. The time limit shall be waived when the scheduling of said activity is subject to control of the County.

The Association agrees that normal and regular Association business shall not be conducted during working hours of employees. This shall not, however, preclude the Wisconsin Professional Police Association employee representatives from meeting individually with officers or members during working hours or from using email notifications to its members regarding meetings or union business with prior notification to the Sheriff, and providing that such discussions or emails do not interrupt, slow down, or adversely affect any scheduled Sheriff's Office work project and are not extended for an unreasonable period of time. This Section shall be construed to permit the officers or stewards to meet, without loss of pay, with County Administration during normal working hours in an attempt to resolve any disagreements relative to the interpretation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement providing that such meeting does not interrupt, slow down, or adversely affect any scheduled Sheriff's Office work project. The Employer shall advise the employee that he/she may request the presence of a steward or officer of the Association at the time of receiving a reprimand and during the course of an investigation in which that employee is the subject of the

investigation, and reasonably believes the investigation may result in discipline to him/her.

3.03

A. Dues Deduction. The Employer agrees to deduct monthly dues in the amount certified by the Association from the pay of employees who individually sign a dues deduction authorization form supplied by the Authorization. This deduction shall include any Local Association dues which the employee has authorized to be deducted in conjunction with the WPPA/LEER dues (the "combined dues").

It shall be the Association's responsibility to obtain dues authorization forms from new employees and provide them to employer no less than 30 days prior to the date in which dues deductions are to commence.

The Employer shall deduct the combined dues amount each month for each employee requesting such deduction, upon receipt of such form and shall remit the total of such deductions, with a list of employees from whom such sums have been deducted, to the Association, in one lump sum not later than the end of the month in which the deduction is made.

Authorization of dues deduction by a voluntary member may be revoked upon notice in writing to the Employer, WPPA or to the Local Association.

No employee shall be required to join the Association, but membership in the Association shall be made available to all employees in the bargaining unit who apply consistently with the either the WPPA or local Association Constitution and By-Laws. No employee shall be denied membership because of race, creed, color, sex or other legally protected class status.

- B. Changes in dues amounts to be deducted shall be certified by the Association at least four weeks before the start of the pay period the increase deduction is to be effective.
- C. <u>Hold Harmless</u>. It is understood and agreed that the Association will refund to the employer or the employee involved any dues erroneously deducted by the employer and paid to the Association. The Association shall indemnify, defend and save the Employer harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability, including court costs, that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken or not taken by the Employer in reliance upon employee payroll deduction authorized forms submitted by the Association to the Employer. If it should be ruled by a court of competent jurisdiction that this indemnification clause, or any part of it, is void as against public policy, then 11.01 Dues Deduction shall become null and void and shall no longer be considered a part of this contract. The parties shall enter into immediate negotiations for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such article or part.
- The Employer shall provide bulletin boards or bulletin board space in designated areas that all employees going about their normal duties shall be able to see bulletin boards with bulletins posted thereon. The Association officers or stewards shall have the right to post notices on such bulletin board space relating to Association business.
- Duly elected Association officers shall be permitted to participate in collective bargaining sessions, provided that if such bargaining sessions are conducted during the regular and normal schedule of daily working hours for such officer, the County shall pay wages for the time spent in such sessions to only two such officers from the bargaining unit.

3.06 A member of the Association who is called upon to serve as a delegate of the Association for conventions or conferences shall be granted leave without pay, but may elect to substitute vacation or compensatory time (holiday or overtime) for such conventions or conferences.

Employees shall notify the Sheriff two weeks prior to the starting date of the leave. If substitutions of personnel or modification of the leave are required, the employee shall notify the Sheriff as soon as possible.

ARTICLE IV - PROBATION AND TRIAL PERIOD

- 4.01 <u>Length.</u> All newly hired employees shall serve a probationary period of one (1) year of continuous service. During such probationary period, they shall not attain any seniority rights and shall be subject to dismissal at the sole discretion of the Sheriff and without recourse to appeal the dismissal through the grievance procedure hereinafter provided.
- Upon the successful completion of the probationary period the employee shall be granted seniority rights. Any employee who is retained after completion of his/her probationary period shall be considered to have completed his/her probationary period and no other notice shall be necessary.
- A temporary, limited term employee may become a regular employee covered by this Agreement, however, the temporary, limited term employment shall not be used as the probationary period. Should a temporary, limited term employee be reclassified as a regular employee in the same job classification, he/she shall be advanced in pay to the probationary rate of his/her classified position; and his/her total time of continuous employment including his/her temporary, limited term appointment, shall be counted as part of his/her probationary period.

ARTICLE V - SENIORITY

Seniority Date. Employees hired after January 1, 2014, upon successful completion of the probationary period, the employee's seniority date as a Correctional Officer shall be the initial date of hire to that rank within the Rock County Correctional Officers Association. Seniority as a Correctional Officer shall be used for the purposes of vacation selection and overtime signup.

Employees hired before January 1, 2014, shall maintain date of County hire as their seniority date.

When a member of the bargaining unit leaves the unit for another position within the Sheriff's Office he/she shall retain their seniority date minus the amount of time he/she was out of the bargaining unit. Furthermore, any persons hired into the bargaining unit outside of the Sheriff's Office from another Rock County department shall retain their county seniority date for purposes of accrued vacation and sick time but will begin seniority within the bargaining unit at the date of hire within the unit.

ARTICLE VI - LAYOFF, REHIRE

6.01 <u>Lay-offs</u>. The Employer shall have the right to reduce the number of jobs in any classification and/or department because of shortage of funds, lack of work, because of a change in organization or duties, or for other legitimate reasons. Employees who are without jobs as a result of a reduction in the number of positions shall be notified in writing two weeks prior to the lay-off and shall be placed on a reemployment list.

- Re-Employment List. The Employer shall maintain a re-employment list of such laid-off employees. Such list shall be in the order of the employee's seniority at the time of the lay-off with the most senior being number one on the list. Employees on the reemployment list shall maintain seniority and recall rights for a time equal to the length of service, not to exceed one year.
- Recall from Lay-off. Employees shall be recalled from lay-off in accordance with their seniority. The Employer shall not employ any new temporary employees, limited term employees, or part-time employees in positions for which there exists a qualified employee on the re-employment list. Notice of recall shall be sent by the Employer to the laid-off employee's last known address and the laid-off employee shall be required to respond within two weeks (fourteen days) from the date of recall. Employees who do not respond to such recall notices shall be dropped from the list and all rights shall be lost.

ARTICLE VII - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

- Leaves of absence, without pay, for periods not in excess of six months in any year, may at the discretion of the Sheriff, be granted in writing to any employee who has completed his/her probationary period, providing such employee does not accept employment elsewhere. Leaves of absence without pay may be granted to employees to enable such employees to extend their annual vacation, provided the leave of absence shall not exceed fifteen working days. Failure to grant leave of absence shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. The employee to whom written leave of absence has been granted, shall be entitled at the expiration of the time stated on such leave to be reinstated to the position in which he/she was employed at the time the leave was granted. The Association shall be provided with a copy of the written leave by the Employer at the time such leave is granted.
- Leaves of absence shall be automatically granted all employees who are called or volunteer for military service and such employees shall be reinstated to their former job at the expiration of their military service under and pursuant to the provisions of Section 45.50 of the Wisconsin Statutes and Title 38 of the Federal Code.
- 7.03 Employees shall not accrue seniority when a leave of absence is granted for more than thirty days, except under 7.02 and 7.03 above.

7.03

- 7.04 <u>Educational Leave</u>. Education leave without pay to further professional growth and advancement in jobrelated areas may be granted for up to twelve months without loss of seniority.
- Medical Leave Of Absence. Leaves of absence, without pay, for periods of medical disability as defined herein not to exceed six months may be granted by the Sheriff in writing to any employee who has completed their probationary period. Said leave shall be applied for in writing at least fourteen calendar days prior to the effective date of said leave, if possible. Said notice period may be waived by the Sheriff. Requests for said leave shall include a written statement from a qualified physician citing the specific medical condition necessitating the leave and also setting forth the prognosis relative to the probability of the employees return to the performance of job duties required by the Employer.
- Prior to return to work, the employee shall furnish the Employer with a written statement from a qualified physician who attended the employee in the treatment of the disability covered by the medical leave.
 - Said statement shall be submitted, if possible fourteen calendar days prior to the termination date of the leave

and shall state that the employee is released to perform the prior job duties as required by the Employer. The employee shall be returned to his/her former position.

- 7.07 The Employer, at its option and expense, may require the employee to be examined by a qualified physician of the Employer's selection.
- 7.08 If an employee is unable to return to work on the date stipulated, he/she may submit a written request to extend his/her leave of absence, subject to approval of the Sheriff. If on the date following the expiration of the leave of absence, an extension is not requested and granted and the employee has not returned to his/her position, the employee shall be considered to have resigned from County employment.
- 7.9 Employees shall not accrue seniority when a leave in excess of thirty days is authorized under this provision.
- 7.10 Family & Medical Leave. At the option of the employee, an employee entitled to family or medical leave under Wisconsin Statutes Section 103.10 may substitute, for any leave requested under the law, any other paid or unpaid leave for which the employee is eligible so long as the employee has met the requirements entitling that employee to that leave.

ARTICLE VIII - HOLIDAYS

- Each regular full-time employee shall be granted the following holidays, or days in lieu thereof, off with pay: 1) New Year's Day; 2) Good Friday; 3) Memorial Day; 4) July 4th; 5) Labor Day; 6) Thanksgiving Day; 7) Friday after Thanksgiving Day; 8) Day before Christmas; 9) Christmas Day; 10) One floating holiday of the employee's choice.
- 8.02 If any of the above listed holidays shall fall on a Saturday, the Friday before shall be declared the holiday. If any of the above listed holidays shall fall on a Sunday, the Monday following shall be declared the holiday. [This is only for employees on a 5-2 schedule.]
- To be eligible for holiday pay, the employee must work his/her regular schedule of hours on the day immediately before and the day immediately after the holiday, unless on authorized paid time off.
- 8.04 24/7 Positions. If a holiday falls on an employee's scheduled day of work, the employee shall be paid time and one-half (1-1/2) for all hours worked and shall be entitled to a compensatory day off with pay. If a holiday falls on an employee's scheduled day off, the employee shall be entitled to a compensatory day off with pay. Any requested compensatory day off shall be granted subject to the approval of the Sheriff. Employees, shall, however, have the right to accumulate and use holidays to extend their annual vacation within twelve (12) months of said holiday.

Requests for holiday time shall be by seniority within each shift of each division, but the days must be requested prior to February 1 of the New Year. Holiday requests will be granted only after all vacation requests have been approved. After February 1, all holiday requests will be approved on a first come, first serve basis, with no regard to seniority. Holidays may be used in increments as small as one-quarter (1/4) hour at a time, except Floating Holidays which must be used in single day increments.

An employee on a 5-2 schedule who works eight (8) hours on a holiday shall receive one and one-half (1 1/2) times the employee's normal hourly rate of pay and will be paid eight (8) hours of holiday pay or granted a day off with pay in lieu thereof, at the employee's option. If an employee on a 5-2 schedule works less than eight (8) hours on a holiday, he/she shall receive one and one-half (1 1/2) times the employee's normal hourly

rate of pay for hours worked and eight (8) hours of pay for the holiday.

Overtime on a Holiday. Employees shall be paid at the rate of one and one half (1 ½) times their regular rate of pay for the first eight (8) hours of their shift and at two and one-half (2 1/2) times their regular rate of pay for all hours worked thereafter on a holiday. Employees working on their scheduled day off will be paid two and one half (2 ½) times their regular rate of pay for all hours worked on the holiday.

ARTICLE IX - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- Any dispute which may arise from an employee or Association complaint with respect to the interpretation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be subject to the following grievance procedure, unless expressly excluded from such procedure by the terms of this Agreement. All grievances, except those involving wage schedule movement or increase shall be initiated at Step 1. Grievances involving wage schedule movement or wage adjustments shall be initiated only at Step 3. Time limits set forth herein may be extended upon mutual agreement of the parties. The Association shall have the right to be notified and be present at all steps of the Grievance Procedure.
- 9.02 <u>Step 1</u>. The employee and/or Association Committee shall present the grievance, orally or in writing, involving matters of interpretation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement to the most immediate supervisor who has the authority to make adjustments in the matter within 14 calendar days of the alleged grievance or the time the employee can reasonably have been expected to have knowledge of said grievance.

The supervisor shall respond within 7 calendar days. If the grievance is denied, said denial shall be in writing.

- 9.03 Step 2. If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1 within seven (7) calendar days from the date of the written denial in Step 1, the employee and/or the Association Committee shall present the grievance in writing to the Sheriff or his/her designee, who shall attempt to adjust the grievance. The Sheriff or his/her designee, shall meet with the employee, and/or the Association representative within seven (7) calendar days following receipt of the written grievance. The Sheriff, or his/her designee, shall provide a written response to the employee or Association representative, within 14 calendar days of the meeting.
- 9.04 Step 3. If a satisfactory settlement is not reached in Step 2 it shall be presented in writing to the Human Resources Director by the employee or the Association Committee and/or the Association representative no later than seven (7) calendar days after receipt of the Sheriff's decision. Within fourteen (14) calendar days, the Human Resources Director shall meet with the parties to discuss the grievance and attempt to settle the matter. If there is no settlement, the Human Resources Director shall provide a decision in writing to the Association within fourteen (14) calendar days following the meeting of the parties.
- 9.05 Step 4. If a satisfactory settlement is not reached in Step 3 within fourteen (14) calendar days after the date the Human Resources Director's written response is due, the County or the Association may serve written notice upon the other that the grievance issue shall be arbitrated.

Within seven (7) calendar days thereafter, the parties shall meet and attempt to agree upon an arbitrator. If the parties fail to agree upon an arbitrator within fourteen (14) calendar days following said notice of arbitration, the parties shall request the Wisconsin Employment Relations Commission to submit a panel of 5 arbitrators. In the event the parties do not agree upon one of the 5 arbitrators, the moving party shall strike two names and the opposing party shall strike 2 names and the individual remaining shall serve as arbitrator to hear the dispute. The arbitrator shall have jurisdiction and authority only to interpret the specific provision aggrieved

and shall not amend, delete, or modify any of the express provisions of this Agreement.

9.06 Costs. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties. The cost of arbitration shall be borne equally by the parties, except that each party shall be responsible for the costs of any witnesses testifying on its behalf. Upon mutual consent of the parties, more than one grievance may be heard before one arbitrator.

ARTICLE X - VACATIONS

- All regular full-time employees shall earn vacation from the most recent date of employment followed by uninterrupted employment (sick leave shall not be counted as an interruption of employment).
- Employees shall not be entitled to vacation while on probation, but upon completion of their probationary period, shall receive credit for their probationary time.
- Effective 1/1/2011, employees shall be entitled to annual paid vacation as follows: Upon the completion of one year, ten (10) working days; in addition, employees shall be entitled to one additional day of vacation per year for each additional year of employment, up to a maximum of twenty-five (25) working days of paid vacation per year according to the following schedule:

After 2 years – 11 days	After 10 years – 19 days
After 3 years – 12 days	After 11 years – 20 days
After 4 years – 13 days	After 12 years – 21 days
After 5 years – 14 days	After 13 years – 22 days
After 6 years - 15 days	After 17 years – 23 days
After 7 years – 16 days	After 18 years – 24 days
After 8 years – 17 days	After 19 years – 25 days
After 9 years - 18 days	

- 10.04 The number of employees on vacation at any one time, within a given classification or job title, shall be determined by the Sheriff.
- 10.05 Choice of vacation time, within a job title shall be by seniority as outlined in Section 5.01.
- Employees shall be encouraged to use vacations in periods of one (1) week or more. In the event an employee wishes to use vacations in smaller increments of vacation, use shall be allowed with Sheriff approval in cases which would not adversely affect the Sheriff's Office work schedule.
- No employee who was given an opportunity to use his/her vacation shall carry unused vacation from one year into the next except by the written permission of the Sheriff and the Human Resources Director. Correctional Officers may request and shall be paid for any unused vacation, but not to exceed one-half (1/2) of the employees annual vacation.
- For Correctional Officers the vacation schedule will be posted no later than December 1st of each year and each employee shall be expected to designate his/her choice for vacation period no later than February 1st. Seniority as expressed in 5.01 above shall govern. Vacation requests after February 1st shall be granted on a first-come, first-serve basis. Choice of vacation time, within a job title shall be by seniority on the employee's assigned work shift.

Employees who retire or the heirs thereof whose services are terminated due to death shall be entitled to be paid for all vacation earned, but unused, plus all earned vacation for the year in which they retire or terminate due to death. Also, employees who resign and give notice to the Employer of their resignation at least two weeks prior to the effective date of their resignation, and who are discharged (except for theft or dishonesty) shall be paid for the number of vacation days earned, but unused as of the date of resignation or discharge. A fractional month of employment shall be counted as a whole month, when the fraction is one-half or more and dropped when less than one-half.

ARTICLE XI - SICK LEAVE

Each full-time employee shall accumulate one sick leave day with pay for each month or major fraction thereof of employment until a total of one hundred-fifty days have been accumulated.

New employees shall earn one sick leave day per month for each month of continuous employment, but may not use such sick leave until they have completed six (6) months of continuous service.

- Sick leave pay shall begin on the first day of absence for illness and notice shall be given by the employee no later than at least one (l) hour prior to their regular starting time.
- Sick leave may be utilized for preventative health care such as dental and doctor office appointments, provided that any employee utilizing sick leave in such manner give written notice of his/her intent to the Employer to do so no later than seven days in advance of the day such employee desires to use for such purpose.
- Sick leave shall be granted to all employees when required to be absent from work because of the serious illness of a member of the employee's immediate family or household requiring the employee's care and attention.
- Employees who terminate or retire with ten or more years of continuous service with the Employer, shall have one-half their accumulated sick leave days not to exceed seventy-five days contributed to a Post-Employment Health Plan (PEHP). The County will contribute \$10.00 per pay period to this plan for each eligible employee. In the event of the death of any employee covered by this Agreement, the County shall make the same sick leave payments to the employee's spouse, if any, and then to the children, if any, and then to the employee's estate. Full-time and part-time Employees who are eligible for health insurance coverage will receive this benefit. Administration of this plan will be as specified in plan documents and subject to State and Federal statutes and regulations. Any required administrative fees will be the responsibility of the Employee. In the event of a discharge for cause, the employee will not receive this benefit.
- Sick Leave Payment. Employees with at least ten years of service who have accumulated more than one hundred days of sick leave may elect to be paid in cash for those days beyond one hundred at a rate of one day of sick leave equals one-half day pay. Employees must notify the department through sign-up, of their intention to collect such pay for sick leave before December 1, of each year. Employees failing to notify the department as required will not be permitted to sign up until the following year. Said payout shall be for a time accrued as of December 31, of the year the election is made, and shall be paid out on the second paycheck in January.

ARTICLE XII - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

In the event of a death an employee may be excused from work without loss of pay for up to a maximum of thirty-two (32) hours annually for the purpose of attending a person's wake, visitation, memorial service,

funeral, or make necessary arrangements regarding the person's death, within a reasonable time after the occurrence.

If additional time is required beyond the thirty-two (32) hours annually, an employee may request to use accumulated vacation, holiday or comp-time. Sick leave cannot be used.

Bereavement leave cannot be accrued from one year to the next.

Bereavement leave can be used in increments of quarter hours.

A second or third shift employee may be excused from work the scheduled shift before or after the event, provided the shift begin or ends on the same calendar date of the event.

All leaves under this section shall be prorated based upon the employee's FTE.

12.02 <u>Pallbearer Pay</u>. In the event an employee is requested to act as pallbearer for a funeral not otherwise eligible for funeral leave, he/she shall be granted one day to so serve without loss of pay.

ARTICLE XIII - BENEFITS IN LIEU OF WAGES

- A group comprehensive major medical plan shall be in force for all full-time employees, the premiums for which shall be paid by the County. In addition, all full-time employees shall have the like coverage provided for their dependents, the expense of which shall be provided by the County during the term of the contract. During the term of the contract the health insurance plan in effect will not be modified except by mutual agreement of the parties. The schedule of medical benefits will be modified as specified in Appendix B.
- An employee who retires from County employment or spouse, thereof, prior to age sixty-five shall be allowed to remain in the Group Hospital and Surgical and the Major Medical Insurance Plan until age sixty-five, provided they submit the required monthly premium to the County Financial Accounting Office, made payable to the County Treasurer.
- 13.03 <u>Life Insurance</u>. Employees shall be entitled to participate in the Wisconsin State Group Life Insurance Program pursuant to the provisions of Wisconsin Statute 40.20.
- Dental Insurance. A group dental insurance plan shall be made available by the County. The coverage and benefit level shall be as set forth in Appendix A of this Agreement. The cost for said premiums shall be shared as follows: The Employer shall pay 60% of applicable premium and the employee shall pay 40% of the applicable premium.
- Retirement. For all employees covered by this agreement, the County shall participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute 40.21(1). The Employee shall contribute the full employee's contribution of the employee's earnings as required by 40.05(1)(a)(3).
- 13.06 <u>Unemployment Compensation Insurance</u>. The Employer will continue to provide Unemployment Compensation Insurance pursuant to Wisconsin Statute.
- 13.07 <u>Worker's Compensation</u>. In the event that an employee covered by this Agreement is injured while at work and as a consequence of said injury or illness received Worker's Compensation disability pay, said employee commencing with the fourth day of absence, shall receive in addition to his/her Worker's Compensation

payment such supplemental payment as will equal his/her full pay for injury or illness for a period of time not to exceed thirteen weeks. Payment shall be accomplished by said employee endorsing and returning the payment for Worker's Compensation to the County and the County shall issue to the employee his/her regular bi-weekly paycheck in the event of a delay in processing the Worker's Compensation claim, the County will continue to issue the employee's regular paycheck and the employee shall sign a waiver stating that he/she shall endorse and return the Worker's Compensation check to the County immediately upon its receipt.

Time covered by this provision shall not be charged against sick leave, provided that the employee will be permitted to use accumulated sick leave for the first three days of absence.

- 13.08 <u>Uniform Allowance</u>. Each full-time employee shall be granted an annual uniform allowance of \$635.00. This shall be paid to the employee on or before January 15 of each year by separate check.
- New Hire Uniform Allowance. Each new employee shall receive a clothing allowance in the amount of \$1,000.00, in the form of a separate check, within two (2) weeks of starting date of employment to purchase approved clothing items as defined in Standard Operating Procedure 4.140, Uniforms for the Rock County Sheriff's Office.

ARTICLE XIV - HOURS OF WORK, WAGES, CLASSIFICATION AND PAYDAY

14.01 Hours of Work, Wages, Classifications and Step Progression.

Section A.

(1) Correctional Officers assigned to work the schedule commonly referred to as the "5-2/5-3 work schedule":

The work schedule shall consist of an eight and one half hours work day with scheduled work days as follows: work five (5) days, off work two days (2) days, work five (5) days, off work three (3) days, with above cycle repeating itself every two weeks. For payroll purposes, base hours will be (79.55) hours in each fourteen (14) day cycle. The work period is defined as a regular recurring period of twenty eight (28) days.

(2) Correctional Officers assigned to work a 5-2 Monday through Friday schedule:

For payroll purposes, base hours will be (80) hours in each fourteen (14) day cycle. The work period is defined as a regular recurring period of twenty eight (28) days.

<u>Section B</u>. Each regular full-time employee shall receive time and one-half his or her hourly wage or time and one half compensatory time off for all hours worked in excess of 8 or 40 hours per week for a 5-2 schedule or eight and one-half hours per day for a 5-2/5-3 schedule; time and one-half compensatory time off shall be taken within the calendar year in which it was earned.

With approval of the Sheriff, if a vacation, holiday or compensatory time is scheduled at least twenty four (24) hours in advance, and is subsequently cancelled by management, the employee will be paid time and one-half (1 ½) for hours worked and will retain the vacation, holiday or compensatory time in the appropriate bank.

<u>Section C. Step Progression</u>: The entrance pay rate for new employees shall normally be hired at Step A. They will be advanced to Step B effective after completion of 6 months of employment. Employees will be advanced to Step C after 18 months, and to Step D after 60 months, and to Step E after 84 months.

The Sheriff may determine that a particular appointment be made above the entrance pay rate in recognition of relevant experience and/or exceptional qualifications, up to the 18 month step. In this scenario, the employee will receive completion credits, as labeled in the wage schedule, towards step progression. For example, if the employee is awarded the 6 month step they have earned 6 months toward movement to the 18th month step. These completion credits only apply to step progression and no other benefits or seniority.

Section D. Shift Differential.

1. Correctional Officers.

Correctional Officers who work on the second shift (3:00 p.m.-11:00 p.m.) shall receive 1% of their base pay as a shift differential. Correctional Officers who work on the third shift (11:00 p.m.-7:00 a.m.) shall receive 2% of their base pay as shift differential.

- Section E. Longevity Pay. Correctional Officers who obtained ten or more years of service as a correctional officer with Rock County as of November 1 of each year, shall receive Longevity Pay. Longevity Pay shall be equal to one and one-half percent of the Correctional Officers base salary, which shall be calculated by multiplying the hourly wage in step E-First Shift by 2088 hours. Longevity Payments shall be issued to correspond to the second paycheck in November and start in November 2021 and continue every year thereafter. Longevity Payments will be made by a separate check or deposit and not included with the ordinary bi-weekly payroll payment.
- 14.02 Payday. Employees shall be paid bi-weekly on alternative Fridays, except when those days fall on a holiday in which case employees shall receive their pay on the day preceding the holiday.
 - If an employee is on vacation or leave of absence, his/her pay shall be mailed to him/her upon request.
- Mileage. Any employee who is required to travel in his/her personally owned automobile in the course and discharge of his/her official duties will be reimbursed at maximum IRS rate per mile actually traveled by the most direct route, provided that such travel has been authorized by the Sheriff or appropriate supervisors.
- The County shall provide a current job description for the position of Correctional Officer which will be reviewed and updated annually.
- The Employer shall provide yearly TB Skin testing and provide Hepatitis B shots for all employees (on a voluntary basis) covered by this Agreement.
- As a condition of employment, employees must have a telephone or a place of telephone contact. Employees shall be required to notify the Sheriff and Human Resources of any change of name, address, telephone number or contact place within 14 days of change.
- All employees shall be granted a fifteen minute coffee break prior to their lunch break and following their lunch break. Such coffee breaks shall not disrupt or disturb efficiency of the Department. Employees who are scheduled to work the third shift, 10:30 p.m. 7:00 a.m., shall not receive the coffee breaks referred above, but shall receive thirty minutes off during their shift for rest or meal.

- The Employer agrees to implement a policy in all division/bureaus that all mandated overtime will be divided as equally as possible among qualified employees. Any employee who is called in to work at other than his/her normal reporting time shall receive a minimum of two hours pay for such work.
- Court Pay. Employees who are off duty and are called in to work or are subpoenaed to appear in court as a result of their work assignment shall receive a minimum of two hours pay at the rate of time and one-half. If the employee is required by the court to be present in court for time over and above the minimum, said employee shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half.

Employees shall be reimbursed for mileage costs incurred because of court appearances required under this provision.

Employees shall sign and turn over to the County any and all fees and reimbursements paid because of court appearances resulting from their work assignment.

<u>Subpoena Cancellation Pay</u>. Employees who are subpoenaed to testify on off-duty time and are not notified of the cancellation or dismissal of said subpoena at least twenty-four hours prior to the time scheduled for appearance, shall be paid two hours of pay at their regular rate of pay. There shall be a maximum of two (2) canceled subpoenas per day.

- 14.10 Correctional Officers assigned to serve as Jail Training Officers shall be compensated one hour of straight time for each four hour period they are required to prepare a Daily Observation Report for an employee in training. Jail Training Officers may elect to receive one hour compensatory time instead of straight time pay.
- Damage to Personal Articles & Clothing. In the event that personal clothing/articles of an employee are damaged in the employee's normal course of duties and as a result of the actions of a third party, the County will replace the clothing or articles by payment to the employee of a sum that represents a fair market value of clothing or articles at the time of damage. Employees receiving a clothing allowance shall be ineligible for reimbursement under this Article for items damaged that are eligible for purchase under the allowance. The amount of reimbursement shall not exceed \$150 per employee per incident.

The incident causing such damage and the value of the clothing or articles damaged may be subject to verification by a competent witness at the request of the Employer. It will be the sole judgment of the Employer what market value is attached to the particular article or piece of clothing, which shall not be arbitrary, capricious or discriminatory.

- 14.12 Compensatory Time Earned. In the event the Sheriff or his authorized representatives post information occasionally relating to technical training programs, seminars, and other specialized police training or meetings, and in the event an employee shall voluntarily desire to attend said program during his/her off-duty hours; then any such employee shall receive compensatory time off from his/her regular working hours for substantially the same amount of time spent in attending and traveling to and from said off-duty training programs.
- 14.13 Compensatory Time-Off. Each employee seeking such compensatory time off shall certify to the Sheriff the number of hours spent at said program, including travel time, during off-duty time and the place where such courses were taken prior to receiving compensatory time off. It is the express intent of the parties hereto that attendance at such approved programs shall be voluntary on the part of the Correctional Officers. Utilization of compensatory time shall be subject to the staffing needs of the department in the judgment of the Sheriff or

his authorized representative. Accumulation of compensatory time shall not exceed eighty (80) hours. Compensatory time must be taken in the calendar year in which it was generated or it will be paid out on the last pay check of the calendar year.

14.14 <u>Specialty Teams</u>. Correctional Officers who receive training as a result of being on a specialty team (SWAT, DIVE, CERT, FIELD FORCE and Honor Guard) will receive straight time for all hours of training unless overtime is required under the FLSA.

ARTICLE XV-JURY DUTY, VOTING

- Any employee required to report for jury duty shall receive his/her normal wages for each day his/her presence shall be required by the Court. Any employee required to report, but not selected for jury duty shall return to his/her place of work as soon as may be reasonably expected. Such employee shall return to the Employer any monies received from or through the Clerk of Courts for such jury duty.
- Any employee who can satisfactorily show that he/she cannot vote during his/her off duty hours shall be allowed time off with pay to cast his/her ballot in all legally constituted elections.

ARTICLE XVI - NO STRIKE, NO LOCKOUT

- During the term of this Agreement no employee shall engage in or in any way encourage or sanction any strike, work-stoppage, slow-down, sit-down, walkout, concerted resignations or sick leave or any other action which would interrupt or interfere with work or responsibilities of Employer, and no employee shall prevent or attempt to prevent access of employees to the offices of Employer at any location or worksite of Employer. Any employee who violates any of the above prohibitions for any reason shall be subject to discipline or discharge at the sole discretion of the Employer and shall forfeit all benefits under this Agreement. Any such discharge or disciplinary action invoked by Employer or forfeiture of benefits under this Article, shall be ratified by the Rock County Board of Supervisors and upon such ratification shall be conclusive and shall not be subject to any grievance procedure or any administrative or court review.
- The Association agrees that it shall not authorize, instigate, aid, condone, maintain or support a strike or any other action prohibited by this Article. The Association further agrees that it shall not discriminate against any non-Association employee or prospective employees.
- The Employer agrees that there shall be no lockout nor shall the Employer discriminate against any employee because of Association activities.
- The Employer and the Association agree that there shall be no discrimination against any employees or prospective employees because of race, creed, color, age, sex, national origin or handicapping condition. It is and shall be the policy of the Employer and the Association to treat all employees equally.

ARTICLE XVII - DISCHARGE, SUSPENSION

- The Employer may discharge, suspend or otherwise discipline any employee for proper cause. An employee discharged or suspended will be informed of the reasons in writing, within two working days of the discharge or suspension and a copy of such letter shall be sent to the Association.
- 17.02 An Association Officer and/or Business Agent will be present when an employee is suspended or discharged if requested by the employee or the Employer.

- Written reprimands will remain in effect for a period not to exceed one year and at the end of such period shall be removed from the employee's personnel file. Personnel files shall be open to employees at all times. Records of suspensions will remain in an employee's personnel file for a period of two years.
- 17.04 Disciplinary action must be grieved within fourteen days.
- 17.05 The Employer shall take disciplinary action no more than seven days from the date that a disciplinary investigation is completed. Upon notification to an employee of a pending disciplinary investigation, the employer shall act diligently to keep the employee and the Association Officer or Business Agent apprised of the status of the investigation.

ARTICLE XVIII - ALTERATION, LIMITATIONS, DURATION

- 18.01 This Agreement may be amended anytime during its life upon the mutual consent of the Employer and the Association. Such amendment to be enforceable, must be in writing and attached to all executed copies of this Agreement.
- This agreement shall supersede all ordinances or resolutions which are in conflict herewith; however, if any article or section be held invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any article or section should be restrained by such tribunal, the remainder of this Agreement and addendum shall not be affected thereby, and the parties shall enter into collective bargaining negotiations for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such article or section.
- This Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2020 and shall remain in full force and effect through December 31, 2021, unless either party desires to alter, amend or otherwise change this Agreement upon written notice to the other party to be received no later than July 1, 2021, or the first day of July in any year thereafter, this Agreement shall be automatically renewed from year to year. In the event one of the parties desires to alter, amend, or otherwise change this Agreement and proper notice is given, but agreement between the parties to the proposed alteration, amendment, or other change is not reached prior to the expiration date of this Agreement, and unless other terms are agreed to this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until the parties shall agree to the proposed alterations, amendments, or other changes. It is expressly understood between the parties that time is of the essence in the submission and receipt, if any, of the aforementioned notice.

ARTICLE XIX - DEFINITIONS

- 19.01 The following terms as hereinbefore used in this Agreement, shall have the following meanings:
 - a) Sheriff means the elected Sheriff or his/her designee.
 - b) <u>Human Resource Director</u> means the Human Resource Director of Rock County.
 - c) <u>Association Committee</u> means a committee of members of the Association representing Rock County Correctional Officers.

- d) County Administrator means the Administrator of Rock County.
- e) <u>Employees</u> are defined as follows:
 - 1) Regular full-time -- those employees who are scheduled to work forty hours or more per week.
 - 2) <u>Temporary</u> -- those employees who are hired for a specified period of time not to exceed six months.
- f) Classification Changes:

County Clerk

- 1) Promotion -- change in job classification to another job classification with a higher salary range.
- g) Immediate Family Includes spouse, child, stepchild, parent, stepparent, sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law (the sister of one's spouse or the wife of one's brother or the wife of one's spouse's brother), brother-in-law (the brother of one's spouse or the husband of one's sister, or the husband of one's spouse's sister), son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, grandchild or step grandchild, domestic partner (as defined by the state of Wisconsin), aunt (the sister of one's father or mother, or the wife of one's uncle), uncle (the brother of one's father or mother, or the husband of one's aunt), niece, and nephew. Immediate family shall not include former "in-laws" due to divorce.

ARTICLE XX - PARAGRAPH HEADINGS

The paragraph headings contained herein are for convenience in reference and for orderly arrangement, and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provisions of this Agreement.

	are not intended to define or limit the scope o ARTICLE	f any provisions of this Agreement. XXI - APPENDIX
21.01	The following appendices shall be part of this	Master Agreement.
	Appendix A, Wages Appendix B, Schedule of Health Benefit Appendix C, Schedule of Dental Benefit	
21.02	The wage appendix attached hereto is made p	art of this Agreement by this reference.
	Signed this day of	, 2020
	FOR THE COUNTY:	FOR THE ASSOCIATION:

President, Correctional Officers' Association

Vice President, Correctional Officers' Association

2020 WAGE APPENDIX A Rock County Correctional Officers Association

APPENDIX A WAGE APPENDIX CORRECTIONAL OFFICER 2020 with 7/1 implementation on Steps 2-5

CLASSIFICATION		Step	1st	2ND (1%)	3RD & MID (2%)
Correctional Officer					, ,
Hire rate	1/1/2020	Α	20.00	20.20	20.40
Hire rate	7/1/2020	Α	20.00	20.20	20.40
				ı	· I
After 1 Year	1/1/2020	В	20.00	20.20	20.40
After 1 Year	7/1/2020	В	20.60	20.81	21.01
		1		ı	ı I
After 2.5 Years	1/1/2020	С	20.96	21.17	21.38
After 2.5 Years	7/1/2020	С	21.59	21.81	22.02
			,	ſ	1
After 5 Years	1/1/2020	D	21.96	22.19	22.42
After 5 Years	7/1/2020	D_	22.62	22.86	23.09
				1	
After 7 Years	1/1/2020	E	23.22_	23.45	23.67
After 7 Years	7/1/2020	E	24.38	24.62	24.85

APPENDIX B SCHEDULE OF HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS

Employee's Share of Premium: 10%-however the employee can earn back that 10% with completion of the Rock County Healthy Employee Incentive Program (HEIP)

Benefit	Dean or Mercy Point of Service Plan
Deductible	In Network: \$500 / \$1,500 Out of Network: \$750 / \$2,250
Coinsurance	In Network: 90% Out of Network: 65%
Deductible and Coinsurance Limit	\$3,650/\$7,300
Maximum Total Cost (Medical and Pharmacy)	In Network: Covered at 100% Out of Network: Deductible, then 65% Coinsurance
Preventative Care	In Network: Covered at 100% Out of Network: Deductible, then 65% Coinsurance
Primary Care / Specialty Care Office Visit	In Network: \$15 Copay Out of Network: Deductible, then 65% Coinsurance
Urgent Care	In Network: \$30 Copay Out of Network: \$30 Copay
Emergency Room	In Network: \$300 Copay* Out of Network: \$300 Copay* *ER Copay waived if admitted to the hospital
Inpatient / Outpatient Hospitalization	In Network: Deductible, then 90% Coinsurance Out of Network: Deductible, then 65% Coinsurance
Prescription Drugs	\$10/\$25/\$50/\$150

APPENDIX C Schedule of Dental Benefits

LOW PLAN HIGH PLAN

	LOWILAN	111011112/111
Maximum per participant per calendar year	\$1,000.00	\$1,500.00
Deductible per participant per calendar year	\$25.00*	\$0.00
Maximum family deductible per calendar year	\$75.00*	\$0.00
*Diagnostic (includes)	100%	100%
Diagnostic X-rays		
Oral Examinations		
*Preventive	100%	100%
Ancillary (includes)	100%**	100%
Anesthesia and injections		
Emergency palliative treatment and		
Denture repairs/adjustments		
		Paris Paris (1997) Paris Paris (1997)
Restorations		
Regular (Direct Fillings)	100%**	100%
Crowns, inlays, onlays	50%**	70%
Bridges and dentures	0	70%
		\$1. Dr. j
Oral Surgery	100%**	100%
Endodontics	100%**	100%
Periodontics	100%**	100%
Orthodontic Services	50%	50%
(lifetime max \$1,000, dependents only)		
Dependents covered to age	26	

^{*} APPLIES TO ONLY BASIC AND MAJOR SERVICES

^{**} DEDUCTIBLE APPLY